UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

Inre: Connours, Douglas J. and Amy Jo, CHAPTER 7
BKY. CASE NO. 03-45588

Debtor(s).

Terri A. Georgen-Running, Trustee, ADV. No. 04-4119
Paintiff,

V.

Douglas J. and Amy Jo Connours,
Defendants.

NOTICE OF HEARING AND MOTION TO DISMISS COMPLAINT TO
REVOKE DISCHARGE

TO: Entities specified in LOCAL RULE 7041-1.

1 Terri A. Georgen-Running, trustee (the “Trustee”) of the bankruptcy estate
of the above-named Debtor(s) and plaintiff in the above referenced adversary proceeding
moves the Court for the relief requested below and gives notice of hearing.

2. A hearing will be held on this motion by the Honorable Robert J. Kressel,
Courtroom No. 8 West, United States Courthouse, 300 South 4" Street, Minneapolis,
Minnesota on November 3, 2004 at 9:30 a.m., or as soon thereafter as counsel may be
heard.

3. Any response to this motion must be filed and delivered not later than
October 29, 2004, which is three (3) days before the time set for the hearing (excluding
Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays), or filed and served by mail not later than October 25,
2004, which is seven (7) days before the time set for the hearing (excluding Saturdays,

Sundays and holidays). UNLESS A RESPONSE OPPOSING THE MOTION IS
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TIMELY FILED, THE COURT MAY GRANT THE MOTION WITHOUT A
HEARING.

4, This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 157
and 1334, FED. R. BANKR. P. 5005 and LocAL RuULE 1070-1. Thisis a core proceeding.
The petition commencing this case was filed on 08/07/03 and is now pending before this
court.

5. This motion arises under 11 U.S.C. 8727, FED. R. BANKR. P. 7041 and
Local Rule 7041-1. This motion isfiled under FED. R. BANKR. P. 9014 and Local Rules
9001-1 to 9001-6 and 9013-1 to 9013-5. The Trustee requests that this adversary
proceeding be dismissed.

6. This case was filed as a Chapter 13 case on August 7, 2004. It was
converted to a chapter 7 case on September 26, 2004. The Trustee was appointed
Chapter 7 trustee on October 3, 2003. The 341 meeting was held on November 13, 2004.

7. The Trustee filed an adversary proceeding on April 2, 2004 (the
“Complaint”) seeking to: (a) deny the Debtor(s)’ discharge pursuant to 11 U.S. C. 8727,
and (b) exception of discharge of debt incurred by fraud or defalcation while acting in a
fiduciary capacity pursuant to 11 U.S.C. 8523(4) and (6).

8. The Complaint was based on to alarge degree by information provided by
William and Diane Maslowski — creditors in the case and the former owners of the
Debtors' failed business, American Eagle Electric.

0. The allegations contained in the Complaint were based on four sets of
facts. (1) the timeline of the bankruptcy filing; (2) possible undisclosed assets and

inaccurate information contained in the bankruptcy schedules; (3) transfers out of the
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Defendants corporation — American Eagle Electric (*AAE”); and (4) failure to provide
documentation to the trustee.

10. The Debtors filed an answer to the Complaint on April 30, 2004 denying
the allegations contained in the Complaint.

11. Subsequent to the filing of the Complaint, the Defendants produced over
1200 pages of documents requested by the Trustee. The Defendants have produced all
documentation requested by the Trustee.

12. In addition, the Debtors testified during a deposition for over two and one
half hours regarding the alegations contained in the Complaint. The Debtors answered
al guestions asked during the deposition.

13. Based on the testimony of the Debtors, the Trustee concluded that the
Debtors filed the bankruptcy in good faith and with the intent to reorganize. As aresult,
the allegations based on the timeline of the bankruptcy filing did not form a basis
sufficient — in the judgment of the Trustee - to support a denial of discharge under 11
U.S.C. §727.

14.  The Debtors amended their schedules and statement of financial affairs to
reflect certain retirement accounts that were not listed on the original schedules and to
disclose the refinance of their personal residence shortly before filing the bankruptcy
case. The Debtors testified that they did not know why they failed to list the retirement
accounts on their schedules. However, the Trustee concluded that the omission did not
appear to be intentional. In addition, the assets were either exempt or not property of the
bankruptcy estate. Similarly, the refinance (and subsequent sale) of the Debtors personal

residence did not result in any non-exempt property. Asaresult, the allegations based on
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possible undisclosed assets and inaccurate information contained in the bankruptcy
schedules did not form a basis sufficient — in the judgment of the Trustee - to support a
denial of discharge under 11 U.S.C. 8§727.

15.  The Trustee reviewed the financial documentation provided for American
Eagle Electric and concluded that the Debtors did not personally benefit from purported
transfers out of the corporation. (It is undisputed that the liabilities of American Eagle
Electric exceeded its assets and that it had no value to the bankruptcy estate before or
after the transfers.) As aresult, the allegations based on transfers out of American Eagle
Electric did not form a basis sufficient — in the judgment of the Trustee - to support
exception of discharge of debt incurred by fraud or defalcation while acting in a fiduciary
capacity pursuant to 11 U.S.C. 8523(4) and (6).

16.  The Debtors provided all documentation requested by the Trustee. As a
result, the allegations based on failure to provide documentation to the trustee are moot.

17. Pursuant to LOCAL R. BANKR. P. 7041-1, | hereby state under oath that |
have neither received nor been promised anything by the Debtors or any other person in
exchange for dismissal of the Complaint.

WHEREFORE, the Trustee as Plaintiff in the above referenced adversary
complaint, requests that the Court for an order dismissing the Complaint.

Dated: October 20, 2004 GEORGEN-RUNNING LAW FIRM
A Professional Corporation

By: /el Terri A. Georgen-Running
Terri A. Georgen-Running (No. 238338)
P.O. Box 16355

St. Paul, MN 55116

(651) 699-6980

(651) 292-1234 Facsimile
ATTORNEY S FOR THE TRUSTEE
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VERIFICATION. I, Terri A. Georgen-Running, state that | am the trustee in the
above referenced bankruptcy case, and the plaintiff and attorney of record in the above
referenced adversary proceeding. | have read the motion to dismiss the complaint to
deny the debtors’ discharge and declare under penalty of perjury that the contents thereof
are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Dated: October 20, 2004 /el Terri A. Georgen-Running
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

Inre: Connours, Douglas J. and Amy Jo, CHAPTER 7
BKY. CASE NO. 03-45588

Debtor(s).

Terri A. Georgen-Running, Trustee, ADV. No. 04-4119
Paintiff,

V.

Douglas J. and Amy Jo Connours,
Defendants.

AFFIDAVIT OF TERRI GEORGEN-RUNNING

I, Terri A. Georgen-Running, being duly sworn and under oath, state that:

1. | am the trustee in the above referenced case and the plaintiff in the above
referenced adversary proceeding.
2. | am the attorney of record in the above-entitled adversary proceeding.

3. During the bankruptcy proceedings, William and Diane Maslowski provided me
with documentation that appeared to support allegations sufficient to support an action to
deny the debtors discharge under 11 U.S.C. 8727 and/or to except discharge of debt
incurred by fraud or defalcation while acting in afiduciary capacity pursuant to 11 U.S.C.
8523(4) and (6). On April 2, 2004, | filed the Complaint alleging those claims and served
it on the Defendants.

4, Subsequent to filing the Complaint, the Defendants produced over 1200 pages of
documents. The Defendants produced all documents requested. A summary of the

documents produced by the Defendants is attached as Exhibit A.
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5. On June 24, 2004, | conducted the depositions of the Defendants for
approximately two and one half hours. The Defendants answered all questions that |
asked them.

6. The Debtors testified during their depositions that they filed the bankruptcy case
in August with the intent to reorganize and propose a viable Chapter 13 plan. They aso
testified that after protracted negotiations with their secured creditors — William and
Diane Maslowski — failed, they realized that they would not be able to propose a
confirmable chapter 13 plan. The Defendants further testified that at that point, they
converted to a Chapter 7 case and subsequently listed their Minnesota home for sale. |
concluded that the Debtors filed the bankruptcy petition in good faith.

7. Debtor Amy Jo Connours testified that her parents live in Sarasota, Florida. The
earnest money for the house purchased by Defendants in Sarasota Florida was paid the
Amy Jo Connours father — J. Russell Klosner. The down payment at closing (November
2004) was paid by Amy Jo Connours' father’s company — Sarasota Investment Co., Inc.
Exhibit B [account numbers redacted by Trusteg].

8. The Defendants amended their schedules in January 2004 to reflect assets that
were not listed and/or listed correctly on their schedules. The Defendants testified that
they could not explain why they did not list the 401k, the [union] annuity, or the two IRA
accounts on their original schedules. However, based on the defendants' demeanor and
overall testimony, | concluded that the Defendants omissions were not intentional or
fraudulent. In addition, the omitted assets were either exempt or not property of the

bankruptcy estate, and would not add any value to the bankruptcy estate.
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9. The Defendants testified that the certain payments from American Eagle Electric
to Douglas Connours constituted rent for offices located in the Defendants’ basement and
for rent for a pole building for American Eagle Electric. The Defendants provided
documentation for the disposition of those funds. American Eagle did sell off some
smaller assets prior to closing its doors, but the funds from the sale of those assets went
back into the company. American Eagle Electric’ s liabilities greatly exceeded its assets,
and the bankruptcy estate did not have any value for the bankruptcy estate. Exhibit C.

10. | have not received and have not been promised anything by the Debtors or any

other person in exchange for dismissal of the Complaint.
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This concludes by Affidavit.

|

Dated: October 20, 2004 \
Terri A. Georgen—l#unning, Trustee

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 20th day of Octg

A
Notary Public

D ARLENE M. PERKKIO
- NOTARY PUBLIC - MINNESOTA

¢ MY COMMISSION

EXPIRES AN 31, 2008

e A P G
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Doug and Amy Connours: Non-Privileged Documents Loaded to Summation
(in chronological order)

No. Begdoc# | Enddoc# | Doc Date Doc Type Summary/Description Prodno
1. 0000442 0000445 06/06/0000 | Check(s) Photocopies of five pages of check registers with Electrus Federal written on | Connours 0000442
the first page [no indication of bank]
2. 0000341 0000354 04/10/2001 | Tax 2001 Tax Documents for Amy J. Connours and Douglas J. Connours, jointly | Connours 0000341
Forms/Documents | and individually, which include both federal and state documents.
3. 0000436 0000438 05/01/2001 | Contract Executed Commercial Lease between Doug Connours as Lessor and Connours 0000436
American Eagle Electric as Lessee with attached ledger sheet showing
monthly payments in the amount of $1,500 from May 1, 2001 through
September 1, 2003,
4. 0000462 0000462 12/01/2001 | Insurance Page 1 of Auto Coverage Part Endorsement Insurance Policy for American Connours 0000462
Forms/Documents | Eagle Electric Inc., Policy No. CWP 3 992 648 provided by Foster Franzen
Carlson White.
5. 0000401 0000401 00/00/2002 | Tax 2002 IRS E-File Authentication Statement for Douglas J. and Amy J. Con
Forms/Documents | Connours.
6. 0000402 0000405 00/00/2002 | Tax 2002 Individual Income Tax Forms for State of Minnesota for Douglas J. and | Con
Forms/Documents | Amy J. Connours.
7. 0000406 0000417 00/00/2002 | Tax 2002 U.S. Individual Income Tax Return for Douglas J. and Amy J. Con
Forms/Documents | Connours.
8. 0001170 0001209 04/16/2002 | Financial Wells Fargo Account Statements for Douglas J. Connours and Amy J. Con
Documents Connours from April 16, 2002 through January 17, 2003.
9. 0000355 0000368 07/31/2002 | Tax 2001 Federal and State Income Tax Returns for American Eagle Electric Con
Forms/Documents | Inc.
10. 0000031 0000046 09/30/2002 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 9/30/02, First Con
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
11. 0001260 0001349 10/00/2002 | Check(s) Photocopies of the front and back of checks (including transmittal sheets) Connours 0001259
drawn on the Wells Fargo Minnesota, NA account of Douglas J. or Amy J.
Connours account from October through December 2002
12. 0000514 0000534 10/25/2002 | Check(s) Check registers for checks 5348 through 5655 written from February 26 Connours 0000514
through October 25, 2002 [no indication of bank].
13. 0000047 0000064 10/31/2002 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 10/31/02, First Connours 0000047
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
14. 0000373 0000373 11/05/2002 | Tax Domestic Corporation Annual Registration Form to the Secretary of State Connours 0000373
Forms/Documents | from American Eagle Electric Inc.




No. Begdoc# | Enddoc# | Doc Date Doc Type Summary/Description
15. 0000065 0000081 11/29/2002 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 11/29/02, First Connours 0000065 |
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc. ‘
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
16. 0000484 | 0000492 12/15/2002 | Check(s) Check registers for checks 6204 through 6276 from October 2002 through Connours 0000484
December 2002 [no indication of bank]
17. 0000474 0000476 12/30/2002 | Contract Bill of Sale, vehicle title and photocopies of deposit slips reflecting payments | Connours 0000474
for 1997 Ford Pickup indicating paid in full and signed A. Connours.
18. 0000082 0000097 12/31/2002 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 12/31/02, First Connours 0000082
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
19. 0001438 | 0001447 | 00/00/2003 | Tax 2003 U.S. Individual Income Tax Returns for Douglas J. and Amy J. Connours 0001349
Forms/Documents | Connours (Form 1040)
20. 0001448 | 0001451 00/00/2003 | Tax 2003 Minnesota Individual Income Tax Returns for Douglas J. and Amy J. Connours 0001359
Forms/Documents | Connours (Form M1)
21. 0001143 0001145 01/00/2003 | Financial Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements for American Eagle Electric | Connours 0001143
Documents Inc. for January 2003.
22, 0001351 0001435 | 01/00/2003 | Check(s) Photocopies of both the fronts and backs of checks from December 2002 Connours 0001363
through March 2003 from the account of Douglas J. or Amy J. Connours
from their Wells Fargo Minnesota, NA account.
23. 0000098 | 0000133 | 01/31/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 1/31/03, First Connours 0000098
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
24, 0001146 0001149 | 02/00/2003 | Financial Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement, and Assets for American Eagle Connours 0001146
Documents Electric for February 2003.
25. 0001210 | 0001249 | 02/19/2003 | Financial Wells Fargo Account Statements for Douglas J. Connours and Amy J. Connours 0001210 |
Documents Connours from January 18, 2003 through December 16, 2003. |
26. 0000134 | 0000164 | 02/28/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 2/28/03, First Connours 0000134
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
27. 0001150 | 0001153 | 03/00/2003 | Financial Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss Statements for American Eagle Electric | Connours 0001150
Documents dated March 2003.
28. 0000493 | 0000513 | 03/01/2003 | Check(s) Check registers on US Bank Account for checks 6000 through 6203, opened | Connours 0000493

3/1/03. Checks written through 10/7/03.




No. Begdoc# | Enddoc# | Doc Date Doc Type Summary/Description Prodno
29. 0000165 0000195 03/31/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 3/31/03, First Connours 0000165
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
30. 0001154 0001157 | 04/00/2003 | Financial Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss Statements for American Eagle Electric | Connours 0001154
Documents dated April 2003.
31. 0000196 0000223 | 04/30/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 4/30/03, First Connours 0000196
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
32. 0001158 0001161 05/00/2003 | Financial Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss Statements for American Eagle Electric | Connours 0001158
Documents dated May 2003.

33. 0000449 0000451 05/01/2003 | Contract Executed copy of Commercial Lease between Doug Connours as Lessor Connours 0000449
and American Eagle Electric Inc. as Lessee with attached ledger sheet %
entitled Storage Rental from May 1, 2003 through September 1, 2003 in the
amount of $2,000.

34, 0000480 | 0000483 | 05/09/2003 | Contract Certificate of Title to Motor Vehicle with attached For Sale sheet and copies | Connours 0000480
of deposit slips reflecting payments.

35. 0000477 0000479 05/28/2003 | Contract Bill of Sale, vehicle title and photocopies of deposit slips reflecting payments | Connours 0000477
for 1992 Ford Econoline Van As Is. 3

36. 0000224 0000257 05/30/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 5/30/03, First Connours 0000224

Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
37. 0001162 | 0001163 | 06/00/2003 | Financial Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss Statements for American Eagle Electric | Connours 0001162
Documents dated June 2003.
38. 0000258 | 0000286 | 06/30/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 6/30/03, First Connours 0000258
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc. ‘
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.

39. 0001080 | 0001142 | 07/00/2003 | Check(s) Photocopies of both the fronts and backs of checks from March 2003 Connours 0001080
through July 2003 from the account of Douglas J. or Amy J. Connours from
their Wells Fargo Minnesota, NA account.

40. 0001165 | 0001169 | 07/00/2003 | Financial Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement and Asset Sheet for American Connours 0001165

Documents Eagle Electric Inc. for July 2003.
41. 0000460 0000460 07/11/2003 | Vendor Payment | Invoice from Ameson's Quality Construction Inc. in the amount of $3,100. Connours 0001448
Information




Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.

No. Begdoc# | Enddoc# | Doc Date Doc Type Summary/Description Prodno
42, 0001164 0001164 07/11/2003 | Financial Vendor Statement from Morton Areson as an agent for Ameson's Quality Connours 0001164 |
Documents Coast indicating payment received of Doug and Amy Connours of $3,100 for
work done in the home in Monticello dated 7/25/04.
43. 0000452 | 0000453 | 07/21/2003 | Financial Invoice and Vendor Statement indicating payment received for work done at | Connours 0000452
Documents Monticello Home in the amount of $4,478. :
44, 0000454 | 0000455 | 07/25/2003 | Financial Invoice and Vendor Statement from Miller Trucking and Landscape Supply Connours 0000454
Documents Inc. indicating payment made for work done at Monticello Home in the
. amount of $3,345.65.
45, 0000429 | 0000431 07/28/2003 | Contract Unexecuted Loan Note No. X75066PE. Borrowers Amy J. and Douglas J. Connours 0000429 .
Connours.
46. 0000432 0000434 07/28/2003 | Contract K&M Title, LLC Agency/Escrow Disbursement Agreement: Refinance. Connours 0000432
Payoff letters indicating enclosed checks in the amounts of $162,246.31 and
$19,882.68.
47. 0000287 | 0000319 | 07/31/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 7/31/03, First Connours 0000287
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.
Douglas J. or Amy Jo Connours. Includes copies of checks and backs as
well as account analysis.
48. 0000370 0000370 | 07/31/2003 | Tax Document describing the appreciation debts and credits. Handwritten note | Connours 0000370
Forms/Documents | indicates done 9/29/03.
49. 0000374 0000387 07/31/2003 | Tax 2002 U.S. Corporation Income Tax Return and related documents. Connours 0000374 |
| Forms/Documents
50. 0000388 0000400 | 07/31/2003 | Tax 2002 Minnesota Revenue Corporation Franchise Tax Forms and related Connours 0000388
Forms/Documents | documents.
51. 0000439 | 0000441 07/31/2003 | Financial Account Inquiry for American Eagle Electric Inc. from August 2002 to July Connours 0000439
Documents 2003 with attached photocopies of deposit slips.
52. 0000535 | 0001071 07/31/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Master General Ledger for fiscal year 2002- Connours 0000535
Documents 2003, August 1, 2002 - July 31, 2003. Handwritten indicates + trial balance,
P&L, balance sheet.
63. 0001072 | 0001074 | 07/31/2003 | Financial Attachment to Master General Ledger of American Eagle Electric Inc. for Connours 0001072
Documents fiscal year 2002-2003: Trial Balance.
54. 0001075 | 0001076 | 07/31/2003 | Financial Attachment to Master General Ledger of American Eagle Electric Inc. for Connours 0001075
Documents fiscal year 2002-2003: Profit and Loss Statement.
§5. 0001077 | 0001078 | 07/31/2003 | Financial Attachment to Master General Ledger of American Eagle Electric Inc. for Connours 0001077
Documents fiscal year 2002-2003: Balance Sheet.
56. 0000001 0000030 | 08/00/2003 | Financial American Eagle Electric Inc. Bank Reconciliation dated 8/31/03, First Connours 0000001
Documents National Bank of Elk River Statement for American Eagle Electric Inc.

4



No. Doc Date Doc Type Prodno
57. 0000458 0000459 08/03/2003 | Vendor Payment Connours 0001449
Information
58. 0000418 0000424 08/25/2003 | Contract Connours 0000418
59. 0000435 | 0000435 | 08/25/2003 | Check(s) Connours 0000435
60. 0000446 | 0000448 | 09/04/2003 | Financial Connours 0000446
Documents i
61. 0000369 | 0000369 | 09/26/2003 | Letter Connours 0000369
62. 0000371 0000372 | 09/26/2003 | Letter Connours 0000371
63. 0001250 0001258 09/30/2003 | Insurance Connours 0001250
; Forms/Documents
64. 0000464 | 0000473 10/15/2003 | Financial
Documents
65. 0000322 0000340 10/23/2003 | Contract Executed real estate forms relating to the purchase of the property at 8779 Connours 0000322
Darlington Avenue Northeast in Monticello sold to Monte Megaw by Douglas
and Amy Connours. Includes Purchase Agreement, Financing Addendum,
Inspection Contingency Addendum, Personal Property Agreement,
Addendum to Purchase Agreement, Disclosure of Information on Land Lead
Based Paint and Lead Based Paint Hazards, Sellers' Property Disclosure,
Well Disclosure Statement, Private Sewer System Disclosure and Well
Location Map, Agency Relationship Documents, Contract for Exclusive Right
to Represent Buyer, Arbitration Disclosure and Residential Real Property
Arbitration Agreement, Compensation Disclosure to Buyer, and Proceeds
Estimate.
66. 0000425 0000426 11/18/2003 | Contract Unexecuted Settlement Statement re property at 2420 Seattle Slew Drive in | Connours 0000425
Sarasota, Florida.
67. 0000320 | 0000321 Contract Connours 0000320
68. | 0000461 | 0000461 Insurance Connours 0000461 |
Forms/Documents
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1/15/2003 69: 30 76329517930

AMERICAN EAGLE ELEC

Bsalance Sheet
American Eagle Electic, Inc
11/15/2003
For Sep. 2003

ILITIES AN ITY

Accounts Payable

Credit Union Payable

\Union, Benefits Payatie’

AQLK Plar Payabie

Jecrued Seb Anruity-Payatie
Bank Line of Credit

Worker's Comp/GL ins Payable
Accrued Federal Payroll Taxes
Accrued MN State W/H Tax
Accrued Fed Unemployment Tax
Accrued State Unemployment Tax
Notes Payable/Vehicles

Notes Payable/Wm. Masloski
Notes Payable/D. Masloski

Add'l Paid-in Capital
Retained Eamings
Currem Retained Earnings
Treasury Stock

TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

1,000.00
682.63
73.013.52
-103,008.54
-463,332.00



UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

Inre: Connours, Douglas J. and Amy Jo, CHAPTER 7
BKY. CASE NO. 03-45588

Debtor(s).

Terri A. Georgen-Running, Trustee, ADV. No. 04-4119
Paintiff,

V.

Douglas J. and Amy Jo Connours,
Defendants

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TO DISMISS COMPLAINT TO DENY DEBTORS DISCHARGE

INTRODUCTION

The Trustee submits this Memorandum of Law in Support of Motion to Dismiss
Complaint to Deny Debtors Discharge (“Complaint”). The Trustee requests that the
Court dismiss the Complaint.

FACTS
The facts set forth in the Motion are incorporation by reference.

LEGAL ANALYSIS

l. THE TRUSTEE/PLAINTIFF HASCOMPLIED WITH THE REQUIRED
PROCEDURAL REQUIRMENTSTO DISMISSHER COMPLAINT.

The Local Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure provide that a complaint objecting to
discharge shall not be dismissed by the plaintiff except by order of the court after hearing
made in the adversary proceeding. LOCAL R. BANKR. P. 7041-1. The motion must be
served on all creditors and other parties in interest, and the plaintiff must file an affidavit

stating that nothing has been received by or promised to the plaintiff in consideration of
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the request for dismissal. Id. The Trustee/Plaintiff has complied with these procedural
requirements.

. THE TRUSTEE HAS CONCLUDED THAT - IN HER JUDGEMENT -
THERE 1S NOT EVIDENCE SUFFICIENT TO ESTABLISH THE CLAIMS
ALLEGED IN THE COMPLAINT.

The claims in the Complaint alleged violations of 11 U.S.C. 88727(a)(2), (3), (4),
and (5), and violations of 11 U.S.C. 88523(a)(4) and (6). The burden of proof under 11
U.S.C. 8523 is by a preponderance of the evidence. Grogan v. Garner, 498 U.S. 279
(1991). All circuit courts that have considered the issue of the standard of proof under
727 have relied upon Grogan to find that the preponderance of the evidence standard is
also applicable to §727.

The claims alleged in the Complaint are based generally on four categories of
actions by the Defendants. (1) the timeline of the bankruptcy filing; (2) undisclosed
assets and inaccurate information contained in the bankruptcy schedules; (3) transfers out
of the Defendants corporation — American Eagle Electric (“AAE”); and (4) failure to
provide documentation to the trustee. The Trustee concluded that — in her judgment —
that there was not a basis sufficient to establish the alegations contained in the Complaint

by a preponderance of the evidence,

A. The Timeéline of the Bankruptcy Filing and Background Facts.

At the Defendants’ depositions, they testified that they filed the Chapter 13 case
intending to reorganize and that when they realized they would not be able to confirm a
viable chapter 13 plan they converted their case to chapter. 7. They then listed the
Minnesota home for sale. Georgen-Running Affidavit at 6. The Defendants testified

that the down-payment for the Florida home was paid by Amy Jo Connours father. 1d.
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at 7. The Trustee concluded that the Debtors filed the bankruptcy petition in good
faith. 1d. at 6.

B. Undisclosed Assets/ I ncorrect | nformation About Scheduled Assets.

The Defendants amended their schedules in January 2004 to reflect certain
retirement accounts that were not listed on the original schedules and to disclose the
refinance of their personal residence shortly before filing the bankruptcy case. Georgen-
Running Affidavit at 18. The Debtorstestified that they did not know why they failed to
list the retirement accounts on their schedules. 1d. However, the Trustee concluded that
the omission did not appear to be intentional. 1d. In addition, the trustee concluded that
assets were either exempt or not property of the bankruptcy estate. 1d. Similarly, the
refinance (and subsequent sale) of the Debtors personal residence did not result in any
non-exempt property. Id.

C. Transfers out of American Eagle Electric.

The Defendants testified that certain payments from American Eagle Electric to
Douglas Connours were for rent. Georgen-Running Affidavit at 19. The Defendants
provided documentation for the disposition of those funds. 1d. American Eagle did sell
off some smaller assets prior to closing its doors, but the funds from the sale of those
assets went back into the company. Id. American Eagle Electric’s liabilities greatly
exceeded its assets, and the bankruptcy estate did not have any value for the bankruptcy
estate. 1d.

D. Failureto Provide Documentation to the Trustee.

After this action was commenced, the Defendants produced over 1200 pages of

documents. Georgen-Running Affidavit at 4. In addition, on June 24, 2004, the Trustee
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conducted the depositions of each of the Defendants. Id. at 5. The Defendants
produced all documents requested by the Trustee and answered all questions posed by the
Trustee. Id. at 14, 5. In addition, the Defendants explained, to the satisfaction of the
Trustee, the failure to produce the documents more promptly. Id. Asaresult, thereis no
basis for any of the allegations based on this category of actions by the Defendants.

As set forth above, the trustee has determined that there is not evidence sufficient
to establish the claims alleged in the Complaint by a preponderance of the evidence.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Court should dismiss the Trustee’s Complaint.

Dated: October 20, 2004 GEORGEN-RUNNING LAW FIRM
A Professional Corporation

By: /el Terri A. Georgen-Running
Terri A. Georgen-Running (No. 238338)
P.O. Box 16355

St. Paul, MN 55116

(651) 699-6980
(651) 292-1234 Facsimile

ATTORNEY S FOR THE TRUSTEE
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

Inre: Connours, Douglas J. and Amy Jo, CHAPTER 7
BKY. CASE NO. 03-45588

Debtor(s).

Terri A. Georgen-Running Trustee, ADV. No. 04-4119
Paintiff,

V.

Douglas J. and Amy Jo Connours,
Defendants

UNSWORN DECLARATION FOR PROOF OF SERVICE

I, Terri A. Georgen-Running, declare that on the date indicated below, | served the
following:

(1) Notice of Hearing and Motion to Dismiss Complaint to Deny Debtors' Discharge; (2)
Affidavit of Terri A. Georgen-Running; (3) Memorandum of Law in Support of Motion
Objecting to Claimed Exempt Property; (4) Unsworn Declaration for Proof of Service;
and (5) Proposed Order

upon each of the entities named below, by mail (unless otherwise indicated below) by
mailing to each of them a copy thereof by enclosing same in an envelope with first class
mail postage prepaid, and depositing same in the post office at St. Paul, Minnesota,
addressed to each of them as follows:

ALL ONATTACHED SERVICE LIST

And | declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Date: October 20, 2004 /el Terri A. Georgen-Running

Notice/Motion to Dismiss Adversary



AMY JO CONNOURS
2420 SEATTLE SLEW DR
SARASOTA, FL 34233

MARILYN J WASHBURN
RIEZMAN BERGER

7700 BONHOMME 7TH FL
ST LOUIS. M0 63105

FIRST NATL BANK OF ELK RIVER
PO BOX 1570

146 WEST BROADWAY
MONTICELLO MN 55362

GMAC

1700 W HWY 36
STE 510

ROSEVILLE MM 55113

IBEW 292 HEALTH CARE PLAN
SUITE 430

5100 GAMBLE DRIVE

ST LOUIS PARK MN 55416-9045

MBNA
PO BOX 15026
WILMINGTON DE 19850-5026

MINNESOTA ELECTRIC SUPPLY
401 93RD AVENUE NW
COON RAPIDS MN 55433

BANK OF AMERICA
PO BOX 1390
NORFOLK VA 23501-1390

EIFBRA

ELEC FRINGE BEMEFITS REC ACCNT
1330 CONWAY STREET SUITE 130
ST PAUL MN 55106

ELECTRUS FEDERAL CREDIT UNION
7100 BROOKLYN BLVD
BROOKLYN CENTER MN 55429

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF ELK RIVER
729 MAIN STREET
ELK RIVER MN 55330

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC CO INC
12437 COLLECTIONS CENTER DRIVE
CHICAGD IL 60693

MASLOSKI DIANE M
18475 RUM RIVER BLVD NW
ANOKA MN 55303

MCNALLANS OFFICE SYSTEMS INC
8851 ZEALAND AVENUE NORTH
MINNEAPOLIS MN 55445

MPLS ELEC INDUSTRY REC AGENCY
5100 GAMBLE DRIVE

SUITE 430

ST LOUIS PARK MN 55416

KENNETH COREY-EDSTROM
LARKIN HOFFMAN DALY

7900 XERXES AVE S STE 1500
BLOOMINGTON, MN 55431-1194

BANNER LIFE INSURANCE
PO BOX 740526
ATLANTA GA 30374-0526

ELECTRUS FEDERAL CREDIT UNION
7100 BROOKLYN BLVD
BROOKLYN CENER MN 55429

FIRST COLONY LIFE INSURANCE CO
700 MAIN STREET
LYNCHBURG VA 24505

FLEET CREDIT CARD SERVICES
PO BOX 1016
HORSHAM PA 19044

HOLIDAY CREDIT OFFICE
5501 WEST OLD SHAKOPEE ROAD
MINNEAPOLIS MN 55440-1216

MASLOSKI WILLIAM S
18475 RUM RIVER BLVD NW
ANOKA MN  55303-8970

MILLER CONSTRUCTION

3335 WEST ST GERMAINE STREET
PO BOX 1228

ST CLOUD MN 56302

NECAMPLS CHAPTER
5100 GAMBLE DRIVE
SUITE 365
MINNEAPOLIS MN 55416



POSTAL PRIVALEGE-
PO BOX 85042 .
LOUISVILLE KY 40285-5042

TRAVELCENTERS OF AMERICA
PO BOX 450919 )
WESTLAKE OH 44145-5639

WRIGHT COUNTY SHERIFF
WRIGHT COUNTY COURTHOUSE
BUFFALO MN 55313

STATE OF MINNESOTA
DEPT OF MANPOWER SERVICES
390 N ROBERT ST :
ST PAUL MN 55101

MBNA AMERICA BANK NA
PO BOX 35480
NEWARK NJ 07193-5480

PRINCIPAL RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE INC
PO BOX 711 ,
DES MOINES IA 50303-0711

NEAICL UUITRINILAL LD

PO BOX 4181
CAROL STREAM IL 60197-4181

A

PUTNAM INVESTMENTS
PUTNAM FIDUCIARY TRUST CO
PO BOX 41203

PROVIDENCE RI 02940-1203

WESTFIELD GROUP
PO BOX 9001566
LOVISVILLE KY 40290-1566

UNITED STATES TRUSTEE
1015 US COURTHOUSE
300 S 4TH ST
MINNEAPOLIS MN 55415

MN DEPT OF REVENUE
BANKRUPTCY SECTION
PO BOX 64447

ST PAUL MN 55164

€CAST SETTLEMENT CORP
PO BOX 35480
NEWARK NJ 07193-5480

JH LARSON ELECTRICAL
ATTN RAE FARONE

700 COLORADO AVENUE SOUTH
GOLDEN VALLEY MN 55416

19435 WEST CAPITAL DRIVE 201
BROOKFIELD W1 53045

STATE FUND MUTUAL COMPANIES
3500 WEST 80TH STREET
SUITE 700

BLOOMINGTON MM 55431-4434

WF BUS PAYMENT PROCESSING
PO BOX 29491
PHOENIX AZ 85038-9491

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
600 US COURTHOUSE

300 S 4TH ST
MINNEAPOLIS MN 55415

BANK OF AMERICA NA
PO BOX 2278
NORLFOLK VA 23501-2115

MORTGAGE ELECTRONIC REGISTRATION SY
PRINCIPAL RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE INC
711 HIGH ST

DES MOINES IA 50392-06\40

DouGLRS T . conepys
YLD SENTNLE SLBW PIL.
SRUASOTR , L
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

Inre: Connours, Douglas J. and Amy Jo, CHAPTER 7
BKY. CASE NO. 03-45588
Debtor(s).
Terri A. Georgen-Running, Trustee, ADV. No. 04-4119
Paintiff,
V.
Douglas J. and Amy Jo Connours,
Defendants
ORDER
At Minneapolis, Minnesota, , 2004

The above-entitled matter came before the Court on the Motion to Dismiss
Complaint to Deny Debtors Discharge filed by the Trustee. Appearances, if any, were
as noted upon the record. Based upon all the files, records and proceedings herein,

IT ISHEREBY ORDERED:

That the Trustee's Complaint to Deny the Debtor’ s Discharge is dismissed.

JUDGE ROBERT J. KRESSEL
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE
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